
 

 

Licensing Committee 
 

Tuesday, 18th July, 2023 
6.00 pm 

Meeting Room A, Old Town Hall 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
  
1.   Welcome & Apologies  
  
2.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 24th January 2023 2 - 8 
  
3.   Declaration of Interest  
  
4.   Update on the work of Public Protection & 

Environmental Health Service 
 

 Update on the work of Public Protection 9 - 11 
  
5.   Licensing Act Training  
  
6.   Minutes of Licensing Committee  
 Tuesday, 17 January 2023 

Tuesday, 14 February 2023 - GLSC 
Tuesday, 16 May 2023 - GLSC 
Tuesday, 13 June 2023 - LASC 

12 - 21 

 
 

Date Published: Monday, 10 July 2023  
Denise Park, Chief Executive 

 

Public Document Pack



Licensing Committee 
Tuesday, 24th January, 2023 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, 24 January 2023 

 
 
PRESENT – Councillors, Councillor Iftakhar Hussain (Chair), Casey, 
Brookfield, Taylor, Imtiaz and Raja. 
 
OFFICERS –  Niky Barret (Licensing Officer), Shelagh Lyth (Solicitor),Denise 
Andrews (Licensing Manager), Tayyab Mulla (Governance Officer) 
 

RESOLUTIONS 
 

11   Welcome & Apologies 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  
  
Apologies were received from Councillors D Hardman, L Salton, D Gee and T 
Fazal 
  
 

12   Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

RESOLVED - The Minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday 22nd 

November 2022 were approved as a correct record. 
 

13   Declaration of Interest 
 
There were no Declaration of Interests.  
 

14   Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision 
 
Members discussed a report which presented the Revised Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Licensing Policy. The purpose of this report was to present 
the outcome of the recent consultation with the trade and other stakeholders 
on the on the proposed Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing.  
  
The Principal Licensing Officer asked members if they would like to reconsider 
the contents of the draft policy in light of the consultation response for the 
following areas of the proposed Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Policy. 
  
DBS Update Service 
  

       All Licensed drivers are required to sign up to the DBS Update Services 
and maintain their registration throughout the licensed period. This had 
enabled the Council to undertake periodic checks at least every 6 
months, in accordance with the Statutory Taxi and Private hire Vehicle 
Standards.  

       Licensed drivers who had failed to register with the update service, or 
who had allowed their registration to lapse would have been required to 
provide a new enhanced certificate every six months 

       Where the Council were unable to check the drivers status due to 
failings on the part of the driver, it may suspend the driver’s licence until 

Page 2

Agenda Item 2



Licensing Committee 
Tuesday, 24th January, 2023 

such time as it is satisfied that there is no new information recorded 
against the driver  

       Nothing in this section will negate the requirement for licensed drivers to 
inform the council within 48 hours of any arrests and release, charge or 
conviction of any sexual offence, any offence involving dishonesty or 
violence or any motoring offence.  

       If there had been any change to the information held by the DBS, the 
driver would be required to provide a new certificate to the council and 
register that one with the update service. 

  
Members were informed that there was some resistance at the Taxi Forum to 
any automatic suspension of driver licenses if licensed drivers were not on the 
update service. However, it was explained that the power to suspend was 
discretionary and would only be used where drivers had failed to respond 
promptly to requests for new certificates, if they had not maintained their 
registration with the update service.  
  
Members agreed not to amend this section 
  
English Proficiency   
  

       The Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards 2020 identify 
that a lack of language proficiency could impact on a driver’s ability to 
understand written documents, such as policies and guidance, relating 
to the protection of children and vulnerable adults and applying this to 
identify and act on signs of exploitation. Oral proficiency will be of 
relevance in the identification of potential exploitation through 
communicating with passengers and their interaction with others. 
  

       A licensing authority’s test of a driver’s proficiency should cover both 
oral and written English language skills to achieve these objectives. 
  

       The Council requires all applicants for new driver’s licences to 
demonstrate their language proficiency, either by providing evidence of 
formal qualifications such as GCSE, GCE, Functional Skills Level 1 or 2 
in English, or ESOL certificate at Level 1 or 2. 
  

       Applicants who do not hold any formal qualifications in English must 
undertake a free skills assessment provided by Blackburn Adult 
Learning service and provide evidence that they have passed the 
assessment 
  

Members were advised that at the Taxi Forum a Private Hire Operator who 
was licensed to operate 1 vehicle and a second operator licensed to operate 
up to 10 vehicles, voiced concerns that recruiting new drivers would become 
difficult, but the proposal was supported by a third operator. In addition to this 
the Private Hire Drivers Association have indicated they had no problem with 
this proposal.  
  
Members agreed not to amend this section. 
  
Driver Training and Knowledge Test 
  

Page 3



Licensing Committee 
Tuesday, 24th January, 2023 

       Applicants for a new driver’s licence are required to pass the Blackburn 
with Darwen Knowledge Test before being issued with a licence. A fee 
is required for the driver training sessions and tests and any applicant 
cancelling an appointment with less than 48 hours’ notice, would not be 
eligible for a refund. 

       The Council publishes a comprehensive guidance pack and training for 
new drivers on its website, to help them prepare for the driver training 
and knowledge test. 

       If an applicant fails three successive tests, their application will be 
rejected and a period of 12 months must elapse, before they will be 
eligible to book onto the driver training session again. 

       Applicants must bring in their photo-card driving licence on the day of 
the test. This must be in date and have their current address on it. 

  
Members were advised that at the tax forum one of the operators who had 
submitted his concerns with the policy had spoken out against the proposed 
cap on attempts drivers may have on passing the Driver Knowledge Test. 
They also suggested that the local routes element of the test be scrapped 
altogether. However, another operator had supported the proposal and the 
Private Hire Drivers Association had indicated they did not have any problem 
with this. 
  
Members agreed not to amend this section 
  
  
Medical Fitness 
  

       Medical certificates, completed by the driver’s own GP practice, or by 
one of the Council’s approved suppliers for medicals as published on 
the Council’s website, are required on first application and then every 5 
years from age 45 until the age of 65 when they are required annually 

  
Members were advised that the proposal was to adopt the same frequency of 
medical assessments used by the DVLA. However, despite the wording in the 
current policy stating that the medical should be completed by the drivers own 
GP, the Council has for a number of years accepted medical certificates from 
2 other approved providers, to ease the pressure on drivers who were unable 
to get appointments from their own GP’s for these medicals. This established 
practice is now reflected in the revised wording.  
  
The Private Hire Drivers Association’s formal response was that they did not 
agree. However members agreed with the proposal to adopt the same 
frequency of medical assessments used by the DVLA. 
  
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles 
  

       The Council will not issue a vehicle licence for any vehicle which is 
licensed as either a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle with any 
other Local Authority. If the Council becomes aware that other vehicle 
licences are running concurrently with this Council’s licence, the 
Blackburn with Darwen vehicle licence will be immediately revoked. 

  
Members were advised that at the Taxi Forum a Private Hire Operator who 
was licensed to operate 1 vehicle spoke out against this proposal and another 

Page 4



Licensing Committee 
Tuesday, 24th January, 2023 

operator had raised concerns about the impact of this on accident 
management companies. However, members had discussed the proposal and 
agreed that the council should not issue a license to any driver whose vehicle 
is licensed with a different authority. 
  
Members were advised that that proposed emission standards for new 
vehicles below were opposed by the Taxi Forum, The Private Hire Drivers 
Association and 3 individual responses passed on by the Hackney Carriage 
Association all oppose this proposal. 
  
Euro 4 emission limits (petrol)                           Euro 6 emission limits (diesel)  
CO – 1.0 g/km                                                  CO – 0.50 g/km  
HC – 0.10 g/km                                                HC+ NOx – 0.17 g/km 
NOx – 0.08                                                       NOx – 0.08 g/km 
PM – no limit                                                    PM – 0.005 g/km 

PM – 6.0x10 ^11/km 
  
The Executive Member had also agreed not recommend this proposal. 
Members agreed that the proposal should be removed from the policy. 
  
Members were advised that there had been general opposition to the proposal 
for the Council to not issue a vehicle licence for any vehicle that had been 
written off by insurers under category A, B or S. 
  
The Private Hire Drivers Association did not agree with the proposal and the 
Executive Member had agreed not to recommend this proposal. Members 
agreed that the proposal should be removed from the policy. 
  
Private Hire Operators 
  

       In accordance with the Statutory Guidance the Council requires 
applicants to provide a recent basic DBS certificate before a private hire 
operator’s licence will be granted, and then annually throughout the 
duration of the licence, in respect of the person named on the licence, 
or for each director or partner where the licence is held by a company 
or partnership. 

       Where an applicant, director or partner also holds a valid Blackburn with 
Darwen driver’s licence, the requirements in 6.3.1 are dis-applied in 
respect of that individual 

       Any applicant who has spent six continuous months or more, overseas 
within the last 5 years, will also be required to produce a Certificate of 
Good Conduct from the relevant Embassy or High Commission, for 
each country where they resided. The certificate must have been 
produced no more than 3 months before it is presented to the Council. 
This document must be a certified translation, if the original Embassy 
Certificate is not in English 

       Operators are also expected to be able to demonstrate that all staff who 
have contact with the public or oversee the dispatching of vehicles do 
not pose a risk to the public and should evidence that they have had 
sight of a satisfactory Basic DBS check for each individual named on 
the register. 

       Applications for private hire operators licences must provide a copy of 
their policy on employing ex-offenders in roles that would be on the 
register required by 6.6.4. 

Page 5



Licensing Committee 
Tuesday, 24th January, 2023 

  
Members were advised that one operator asked if the Council would be 
providing guidance on the policy for ex-offenders and it was suggested that a 
sub-group could be established to look at producing a template for all 
operators to use. Members agreed not to amend this proposal. 
  
Revised Convictions Policy 
  

       A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is considered to be one which 
does not involve loss of life, driving under the influence of drink or 
drugs, driving whilst using a mobile phone, and has not resulted in 
injury to any person or damage to any property, including vehicles. An 
applicant with 7 or more points on their DVLA licence for minor traffic or 
vehicle related offences, will not be granted a licence until at least 5 
years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. 

  
Members were advised that during the consultation there had been a general 
opposition to this proposal from the Private Hire Drivers Association, taxi forum 
and the Executive Member had agreed not to recommend the proposal. 
  
The Principle Licensing Officer provided a handout which incorporated the 
existing policy guidelines for the offences covered by the section in the draft 
that attracted the objections. Members agreed to continue to consider these 
using the current policy guidelines. 
  
  
The Principle Licensing Officer had informed members that the Private Hire 
Drivers Association had also ‘Not Agreed’ 3 other elements from the draft 
policy which had not been amended as part of this review. These were as 
follows. 

1.    Conditions attached to drivers licences – Smoking in private hire 
vehicle fines 

  
Members were informed that this was not a condition on a licence, but the 
Licensing Service do include reference to the Health Act 2006 on all driver 
licences, to remind the holder of the offences and penalties that have been in 
place since the Smoke Free legislation came into effect on 2006. 

  
2.    Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Penalty Points Scheme 

  
Members we advised that this scheme was introduced before the last policy 
revision in 2016 and remains unchanged. 
  

3.    Disclosure and Barring Service checks - relating to Certificate of 
good conduct requirements 

  
Members were informed that this requirement was introduced in Blackburn in 
the 2016 Policy review.  The Statutory Standards also addressed Overseas 
convictions.  
  
  
RESOLVED – The Members recommend the draft policy as amended be 
presented to the next available Council Forum for adoption. 
  

Page 6



Licensing Committee 
Tuesday, 24th January, 2023 

 
15   Update on the work of the Public Protection Service 

 
The Committee received an update on the work of the Council’s Public 
Protection and Environmental Health Services (PPS) where there was a 
connection with businesses and persons who required a licence from the 
Council. It also provided an update for Members on national policy changes 
and proposals affecting licencing work. 
  
Joint Operational Work 
  
Licensing and Environmental Health Officers have worked with Lancashire 
Police and BwD Children’s Services on Operation Latimer. On 19 December 
visits were carried out at three businesses – 2 in Blackburn and 1 in Darwen 
following concerns around possible child sexual exploitation (CSE). 
  
During the visits business owners and staff were spoken to and educated 
about CSE and the premises were inspected to ensure they were complying 
with health and safety, licensing and hygiene requirements. 
  
Officer revocations 
  
In quarter 3 of 2022/23, 2 drivers have had their hackney/private hire drivers’ 
licences revoked by officers for issues which needed immediate action. 
  
Appeal results 
  
Since the last Licensing Committee 2 appeals against the decision of officers 
or general licensing sub-committees to revoke private hire vehicle driver 
licences have concluded. The Magistrates Court agreed with the decision 
made by the Licensing Sub-Committee and awarded costs against the driver 
of £1500. This is now subject to a further appeal to the Crown Court. The 
appeal against the officer decision was withdrawn with costs awarded of 
£2844. 
  
Blackburn with Darwen Taxi Forum meeting 
  
At November’s meeting of the Taxi Forum the focus was on the consultation 
on the proposed amendments to the Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Licensing Policy.  
  
Complaints to Licensing Team 
  
During the period 21 complaints have been made to the Licensing Team – 17 
related to taxi/private hire licensing and 4 were about alcohol or late night hot 
food licensed premises. 
  
The most common complaints were about verbal abuse/threatening behaviour 
by licensed drivers and refusal to take passengers with guide dogs or making 
additional charges for carrying passengers using wheelchairs. 
  
Environmental Health have also received 2 complaints about noise and 
disturbance emanating from licensed premises 
 

Page 7



Licensing Committee 
Tuesday, 24th January, 2023 

Routine work carried out 
  
The following table provides figures on some of the key work carried out from 
1 October 2022 to 31 December 2022. 
  

Vehicle licences processed – hackney carriage and private hire 497 

Driver licences processed – new and renewal applications      137 

Licensing Act licences processed  
These are new licences, variations to existing licences and changes 
to designated premises supervisor 

33 

Temporary Event Notices processed 41 

Animal Welfare Licences processed 2 

Street trader 2 

  
Licensing Committee Member Resources 
  
Members were advised that the Local Government Association has published 
a range of resources and handbooks to help councillors with their role sitting 
on licensing committees. 
  
The committee were provided with the links to the training courses and had 
agreed to complete the training and provide the certificates by the end of the 
fiscal year.  
  
RESOLVED - The update be noted 
  
 

16   Minutes of Licensing Sub Committees 
 
The Committee received the proceedings of the following Sub Committees:  
  

General Licensing Sub Committee held on 15th November 2022  

General Licensing Sub Committee held on 13th December 2022  
  
RESOLVED – That the proceedings of the Sub Committees as outlined above 
were approved as a correct record and were duly signed by the Chair. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: …………………………………………………. 
 
Date: ……………………………………………………. 

Chair of the meeting  
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 

Page 8



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND OPERATIONS 
 
ORIGINATING SECTION: PUBLIC PROTECTION SERVICE 

 
REPORT TO : LICENSING  COMMITTEE       18 July 2023   

 
TITLE : UPDATE ON THE WORK OF PUBLIC PROTECTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL 

HEALTH SERVICE 
 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the work of the Council’s Public 
Protection and Environmental Health Service (PPS) where there is a connection with 
businesses and persons who require a licence from the Council. It also provides an update for 
members on national policy changes and proposals affecting licencing work.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
That members note the report.  

3. KEY ISSUES 
 
 
3.1 Officer revocations/refusals 
 
In quarter 4 of 2022/23, 2 drivers have had their drivers’ licences revoked by officers under 
delegated powers.   
 
In quarter 1 of 2023/24, 1 driver had their licence revoked and 2 had applications refused by 
officers under delegated powers. 
 
3.2 Appeal results  
 
Since the last Licensing Committee 3 appeals against the decision of officers or general 
licensing sub-committees to revoke or refuse to grant driver licences have been concluded.  
The Magistrates Court upheld each of these decisions and awarded a total of £2,513 costs to 
be repaid to the Council. 
 
 
3.3 Blackburn with Darwen Taxi Forum meeting  
 
At February’s meeting of the Taxi Forum the main agenda item was a report back on the 
outcome of the consultation on the amendments to the Council’s Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing Policy.  
 
An update was also given on the new on-line licence application process.  

3.4 Complaints to Licensing Team  
 
In quarter 4  2022/23, 27 complaints had been made to the Licensing Team. 13 about licensed 
drivers, 3 about licensed vehicles, 3 about private hire operators, 7 about licensed premises 
and 1 about street trading. 
 
In quarter 1  2023/24, 39 complaints had been made to the Licensing Team. 16 about licensed 
drivers, 3 about licensed vehicles, 2 about private hire operators, 6 about licensed premises, 2 
about street trading, 2 about animal licensing and 3 about charitable collections.. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

The most common complaints about drivers relate to poor driving, inappropriate or aggressive 
behaviour towards people and refusing to carry assistance dogs. Complaints  about licensed 
premises are generally either due to noise or disturbance, or for providing hot food after 11pm 
without the necessary licence. 
 
3.5 Routine work carried out  
 
The following table provides figures on some of the key work carried out from 1 January to 30 
June 2023.  
 
 Q4 

22/23 
Q1 
23/24 

Vehicle licences processed – hackney carriage and private hire  
 

 
428 

 
385 

Driver licences processed – new and renewal applications 
 

 
87 

 
75 

Licensing Act licences processed 
These are new licences, variations to existing licences and  changes to 
designated premises supervisor 
 

  
34 

 
23 

Temporary Event Notices processed  
 

 
15 

 
42 

Animal Welfare Licences processed  
 

 
1 

 
6 

Street trader  
 

 
3 

 
7 

  
 
3.6 National Issues 
 
Information sharing 
 
Since April this year all licensing authorities have been mandated to check the National 
Database of Revoked, Refused and Suspended Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver 
licences (NR3S). This is to ensure that information is shared between licensing authorities 
about applicants where they have been deemed not fit and proper to hold a licence.  
 
In Blackburn with Darwen the NR3S has been used for the last 18 months, before it became a 
mandatory requirement. The licensing team have uploaded details of 22 drivers who have 
been refused a licence, 15 who have had their licences revoked and 1 whose licence was 
suspended in that time.  
 
Pavement café licences  
 
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities have laid the Regulations necessary 
to extend the Pavement Licensing regime under the Business and Planning Act 2020 for a 3rd 
time. Current licences must expire on 30 September 2023 at the latest, but when the 
amendments regulations are enacted, all new pavement café licences and renewals issued 
under the Business & Planning Act 2020 will expired on 30 September 2024.  
 
4. RATIONALE 
 
To inform members of the Licensing committee about the key work carried out by staff 
working within the Council’s Public Protection and Environmental Health Service where there 
is a connection with businesses and people needing a licence from the Council. It also 
provides an update on some national licensing issues.  

Page 10



3 
 

 
5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
  

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None  
 
7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
 

 
8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
None  

 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
 None  
10 . CONTACT  OFFICER 
                
  Denise Andrews – Business Compliance and Licensing Manager 
                   Telephone  01254 585585 

None.  

Page 11



General Licensing Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 17th January, 2023 

GENERAL LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, 17 January 2023 

 
 
PRESENT – Councillors,  , Brookfield, Hardman and Taylor. 
 
OFFICERS -  Niky Barret (Principle Licensing Officer), Julie Fisher (Solicitor) 
Tayyab Mulla (Governance Officer) 
 

RESOLUTIONS 
  

1   Welcome and Apologies 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting of the General Licensing Sub-
Committee.  
  
  

2   Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest received.  
  
 

PART 2 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC MAY BE EXCLUDED DURING 
CONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS 

 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items in view of the fact that the business to be 
transacted was exempt by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 contained in 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
  

3   Reviews of Private Hire Hackney Carriages/Vehicle Drivers Licence 
Applications 
 
The Sub-Committee considered reports detailing the application outlined 
below. 
  
In considering the application, the Sub-Committee took into account 
representations and submissions provided by the Principal Licensing Officer 
and the applicants in relation to the respective application.  
  
Following the respective submissions by the Principal Licensing Officer and 
the applicant, the Sub-Committee adjourned to seek legal advice in relation to 
the applicants attending the meeting.  
  
RESOLVED – That the decisions of the Sub-Committee be as follows:- 
  
  
Applicant Licence Attended 

Meeting 
Decision 

Mr Faraz Habib 
Ali 

Application to 
renew a dual 
drivers licence 

No, heard in 
absence 
  

The Sub Committee 
had made the decision 
that the application be 
refused as they were 

Public Document Pack

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



General Licensing Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 17th January, 2023 

not satisfied that Mr Ali 
was a fit and proper 
person to hold a 
licence.  
  

Mr Iftikhar 
Ahmed 

Review of a dual 
drivers licence.  

Yes,  
supported by 
friend  

The Sub Committee 
had made the decision 
that the licence will 
continue with the 
condition that Mr 
Ahmed satisfactorily 
completes a training 
course offered by Blue 
Lamp within a three 
month period. 
  
There was also a 
recommendation that 
Mr Ahmed considers 
undertaking a ESOL 
English course offered 
by Blackburn College.  
  
  

Mr Aadam 
Hussain 

Application for a 
new dual drivers 
license 

Yes, 
supported by 
sister in law 

The Sub Committee 
had made the decision 
that the application be 
refused as they were 
not satisfied that Mr 
Hussain was a fit and 
proper person to hold a 
licence.  
  
The Sub-Committee 
also considered that it 
is  appropriate to 
depart from the Policy 
on this occasion for the 
following reasons: 
  
The current policy 
refers to a minimum 
period of at least three 
years to have passed 
since the last offence 
of a violent nature.  
  
The panel were 
concerned that Mr 
Hussain’s previous 
conviction for the S47 
Assault, which in itself 
is a serious offence of 
a violent nature, was 

Page 13



General Licensing Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 17th January, 2023 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: …………………………………………………. 
 
Date: ……………………………………………………. 

Chair of the meeting  
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 

aggravated by the fact 
that it was an incident 
of domestic violence 
committed against his 
ex partner whilst 
intoxicated. 
  
The Sub Committee 
found that this is more 
serious and therefore 
requires a further 
period of non 
offending.  
  
  

Page 14



General Licensing Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 14th February, 2023 

GENERAL LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

 
 
PRESENT – Councillor Iftakhar Hussain (Chair), Denise Gee and Imtiaz. 
 
OFFICERS –  Niky Barret (Principle Licensing Officer), Anthony Walton 
(Senior Public Protection Officer), Julie Fisher (Legal Solicitor) and Tayyab 
Mulla (Governance Officer) 
 

RESOLUTIONS 
  

1   Welcome and Apologies 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting of the General Licensing Sub-
Committee. 
  

2   Declaration of Interests 
 
No declaration of interest  
 

PART 2 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC MAY BE EXCLUDED DURING 
CONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS 

 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items in view of the fact that the business to be 
transacted was exempt by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 contained in 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
  

3   Applications for Private Hire / Hackney Carriages Vehicle Drivers 
Licences 
 
The Sub-Committee considered reports detailing the application outlined 
below. 
  
In considering the application, the Sub-Committee took into account 
representations and submissions provided by the Principal Licensing Officer 
and the applicants in relation to the respective application.  
  
Following the respective submissions by the Principal Licensing Officer and 
the applicant, the Sub-Committee adjourned to seek legal advice in relation to 
the applicants attending the meeting.  
  
RESOLVED – That the decisions of the Sub-Committee be as follows:- 
  
  
Applicant Licence Attended 

Meeting 
Decision 

Mr Waqas 
Ahmed 

Application for a 
new dual driver’s 
license  

Yes 
supported by 
Mr 
Muhammad 
Raees 

The Sub Committee 
had made the decision 
that the application be 
refused as they were 
not satisfied that Mr 

Public Document Pack

Page 15



General Licensing Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 14th February, 2023 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: …………………………………………………. 
 
Date: ……………………………………………………. 

Chair of the meeting  
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 

Ahmed was a fit and 
proper person to hold 
a licence.  
  

Mr Rana Khan  Application for a 
new dual driver’s 
license 

Yes,  
supported by 
Mr Khan   

The Sub Committee 
were satisfied that Mr 
Khan was a fit and 
proper person to hold 
a licence. 
  
However the Sub 
Committee did agree 
for a condition to be 
put on the license that 
 will required Mr Khan 
to provide a DVLA 
share code each and 
every month going 
forward, to allow the 
Licensing Office to 
check the status of Mr 
Khan’s license.  
  
Any further motoring 
convictions would 
result in the matter 
being immediately 
referred back to the 
Licensing Panel.  

Page 16



General Licensing Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 16th May, 2023 

GENERAL LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, 16 May 2023 

 
 
PRESENT – Councillors,  , Fazal, Hardman and Hussain. 
 
OFFICERS -  Niky Barret (Principle Licensing Officer), Julie Fisher (Solicitor), 
Tayyab Mulla (Governance Officer),  
 

RESOLUTIONS 
  

1   Welcome and Apologies 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting of the General Licensing Sub-
Committee. 
  
  

2   Declaration of interests 
 
No Declaration of Interests  
 

PART 2 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC MAY BE EXCLUDED DURING 
CONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS 
  

3   Applications for and reviews of drivers licences 
 
The Sub-Committee considered reports detailing the application outlined 
below. 
  
In considering the application, the Sub-Committee took into account 
representations and submissions provided by the Principal Licensing Officer 
and the applicants in relation to the respective application.  
  
Following the respective submissions by the Principal Licensing Officer and 
the applicant, the Sub-Committee adjourned to seek legal advice in relation to 
the applicants attending the meeting.  
  
RESOLVED – That the decisions of the Sub-Committee be as follows:- 
  
  
Applicant Licence Attended 

Meeting 
Decision 

Mr Malik Imtiaz Review of licence 
for joint hackney 
carriage/private 
hire driver licence 
  

No The Sub Committee 
had made the 
decision to suspend 
Mr Ahmed’s License 
with immediate effect 
until such time as he 
has completed the 
half day Taxi Driver 
Remedial Course and 
proved to the 
satisfaction of the 
Licensing officer that 

Public Document Pack

Page 17



General Licensing Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 16th May, 2023 

  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: …………………………………………………. 
 
Date: ……………………………………………………. 

Chair of the meeting  
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 

he has completed it. 
  
  

Asfaq Ahmed Review of licence 
for a hackney 
carriage driver 
licence 

No   The Sub Committee 
were satisfied that Mr 
Khan was a fit and 
proper person to hold 
a licence. 
  
  

Mr Osama Nazir Application for dual 
hackney 
carriage/private 
hire driver licence 
  

No The Sub Committee 
were satisfied that Mr 
Khan was a fit and 
proper person to hold 
a licence. 
  

Page 18



Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 13th June, 2023 

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, 13 June 2023 

 
 
PRESENT – Councillors Fazal and Hussain. 
 
OFFICERS –  Niky Barret (Principle Licensing Officer), Samuel Stocks 
(Environmental Protection Officer), Gary Johnston (Service Lead, 
Environmental Health and Public Protection), Tayyab Mulla (Governance 
Officer), Shelagh Lyth (Solicitor), PC Needham (Licensing Constable East 
Division)  
 

RESOLUTIONS 
  

1   Welcome and Apologies 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  
  
Apologies were received from Councillor Derek Hardman.  
  
The Chair asked the Applicants if they were prepared to agree to there being 
two Members on the Sub Committee in the absence of a third member and 
agreed to the proposal. 
  
  

2   Declaration of Interests 
 
No Declarations of Interests  
  
  

3   Application to Vary a Premises License 
 
An application had been received on 23rd March 2023, under section 34 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 to vary premises licence LP7857, from Mr Karamat 
Hussain in respect of Intack Mini Market, Accrington Road, Blackburn. 
  
The panel were informed that the current licence authorised the following 
licensable activities:  
Supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises 
Monday to Saturday - 08:00 to 23:00 
Sunday 10:00 to 22:30  
Christmas Day 12:00 to 15:00 then 19:00 to 22:30  
Good Friday 10:00 to 22:30 
  
However the applicant was seeking for the authorisation for the following 
variation:  
Supply of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises 
Monday to Sunday 0:00 hrs to 24:00 hrs  
Hours the premises are open to the public 
Monday to Sunday 0:00hrs to 24:00 hrs 
  
The Principle Licensing Officer had informed the Panel that all the 
Responsible Authorities had been consulted and public notices had been 

Public Document Pack

Page 19



Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 13th June, 2023 

displayed and published in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises 
licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005. 
The panel were advised that if they were satisfied that the licensing objectives 
would not be undermined, they should grant the application in the terms 
applied for. 
  
At the close of the statutory consultation period there were two outstanding 
representations from other persons and one from Blackburn with Darwen 
Environmental Protection Service in their capacity as a Responsible Authority 
in respect of this application. 
  
The first representation was from Lancashire Constabulary as they were 
concerned about the impact 24 hour opening would have in what was a 
predominantly residential neighbourhood. PC Needham had informed the 
panel that Lancashire Constabulary had wished to object the application on 
the Prevention of Crime and disorder and prevention of Public Nuisance 
licensing objectives.  
  
The panel members were also advised that as the premises was situated in a 
residential area, there was major concerns that there would disturbances to 
the nearby houses from vehicles arriving and leaving together as well as 
customers opening and closing car doors throughout the night if the premises 
was allowed to open and sell alcohol for 24 hours. PC Needham had advised 
the panel that if they were mindful to grant the licence then he would like the 
panel to consider additional conditions: 
  

• The applicant must ensure that CCTV could be obtained by the Police 
in a timely manner and retained for a period of 28 days. 

• If the CCTV systems was replaced or repaired the old hard drive must 
be retained for a period of 28 days and produced on request to a Police 
officer or authorised officer of the council. 

• There must be documented training of all staff in the responsible sale of 
alcohol, with regular documented refresher training.  

• The premises must take responsibility for ensuring youths are not 
allowed to gather and remain outside 

• The premises must document all refusals and challenges whether it be 
a written log or electronically on the till and be made available to any 
authorised officer. 
  

The Environmental Protection Officer had shared PC Needham’s concerns to 
the committee  citing that the premises was in a residential area and allowing 
the premises to sell alcohol at any time would make it a likely destination point 
for people wishing to obtain alcohol late at night, which would have a high 
potential to cause public nuisance. 
  
The Principle Licensing Officer had informed the panel that the applicant had 
agreed some additional conditions with Trading Standards during the 
consultation period which would be added to the licence should the variation 
be granted. 
  
The panel were informed by the applicant that the premises would not allow 
any customers in the premises after 11pm to safeguard the customers and the 
staff members therefore would complete any sales via a window hatch after 
11pm. 

Page 20



Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 13th June, 2023 

  
The applicant had informed the panel that if the application had not been 
granted then they would be financial implication on his business, and that he 
could consider extended hours but would prefer the application to be granted.  
The Sub Committee shared the concerns of the Environmental Protection 
Officer and the Lancashire Constabulary re the premises was in a residential 
area and the major concerns with the noise disturbance to the residents in the 
area. 
  
RESOLVED –  
The Sub Committee decided tonot to grant the application to vary the 
Premises License on the grounds that it undermined the licensing objective 
prevention of public nuisance and to a lesser extent prevention of crime and 
disorder.  The Sub Committee was not satisfied after considering his 
representations that the Premises License older was able to uphold those two 
the licensing objectives should it be allowed to sell alcohol 24 hours a day. 
However they did decide to grant the application partly in the following way on 
the grounds that to do so would not undermine the licensing objectives: 
The Sub Committee decided to grant an extension of the hours as follows: 
  
Current Hours 
Monday to Saturday - 08:00 to 23:00  
Sunday 10:00 to 22:30  
Christmas Day 12:00 to 15:00 then 19:00 to 22:30  
Good Friday 10:00 to 22:30 
  
The new hours will be: 
Monday to Thursday 08:00 to 12:00 midnight 
Friday and Saturday 08:00 to 01:00  
Sunday 08:00 to 12:00 midnight 
Christmas Day 12:00 to 15:00 then 19:00 to 22:30 (no change) 
Good Friday 10:00 to 22:30 (no change) 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: …………………………………………………. 
 
Date: ……………………………………………………. 

Chair of the meeting  
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 

Page 21


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Update on the work of Public Protection & Environmental Health Service
	DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND OPERATIONS
	1. PURPOSE
	2. RECOMMENDATION
	3. KEY ISSUES
	5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS
	6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
	9. CONSULTATIONS
	10 . CONTACT  OFFICER

	6 Minutes of Licensing Committee
	Minutes
	Tuesday, 14 February 2023 - GLSC
	Minutes

	Tuesday, 16 May 2023 - GLSC
	Minutes

	Tuesday, 13 June 2023 - LASC
	Minutes



